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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (*"GEM") OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE "EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of
profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature
of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in
which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The
greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication
on the internet website operated by the Exchange. Listed companies
are not generally required to issue paid announcement in gazetted
newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they
need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date
information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the "Directors") of Prosten Technology
Holdings Limited (the "Company") collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules")
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, (1) the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in
this report misleading, and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been
arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and
assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Corporate Profile

The Group was founded in 1990 when Prosten Technology Co., Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary within the Group was established. It has become
a dominant player in its chosen markets and enjoyed a successful track
record in providing software and value added solutions, IT and networking
services, and large scaled integration services to telecommunication carriers
and enterprises. The holding company of the Group was first listed on

GEM (Stock Code 8026) in March 2000.

The Group currently has 169 employees with operating offices in major

cities of China including Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou.
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Chairman’s
Statement

Two years ago, the Group determined to enter into a high margin and recurring business.
Since late 2002, we have started to explore the mobile value added services (“MVAS”)
business by setting up a very small task force in Beijing. Today, the MVAS business
unit has grown over 120 people and have sales and support offices in more than 12
cities in China. Although the changing process was challenging in the last two years,
the Group believes that the MVAS market in China offers growth opportunities and

path for the Group to recover.

During the year, revenue generated from the MVAS business increased from 8% to
62% and the turnover from MVAS business increased by 372% to HK$33,976,000.
Although the overall turnover of HK$54,791,000 decreased by 35% as compared with
HK$84,596,000 of last year, the gross profit margin increased from 28% to 38%. The
higher margin was contributed by the growth of the MVAS business that has a relatively

high gross profit margin.

Despite the fast growth of mobile users and subscribers in China, the operating condition
turned harsh during the third quarter of this year as there were many regulatory policies
and restrictions imposed by the regulators and mobile operators. Our MVAS revenue
was impacted as a result of those new restrictions. Nevertheless, our business showed
signs of recovery towards the end of the third quarter of the financial year 2005 and
the Group will continue to take cautious approaches to balance its business risks and
build earning momentum for the months ahead. Besides, we view it as an opportunity
for us to develop high quality products and services including the Group’s new strategic
product named Mobile Intelligent Navigation Engine (“MINE”) that can differentiate the
Group from others. We believe that the regulatory act remains a characteristic of mobile
value added industry for some time to come. This is a natural selection process to
raise the overall standard in mobile value added services and to set a fair playing field

for competition.

Advance technological skills and industry know-how has always been the core of our
Group. To meet the challenges and opportunities ahead, the dedication of the
management and staff is a critical element. | would like to express a note of thanks to
everyone in the Company for their hard work. | would also like to thank all the board

members for their support and understanding.

Yip Seng Mun

Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 June 2005
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

OPERATING RESULTS

Revenue and Gross Profit

The Group’s turnover of HK$54,791,000 was recorded for the year
ended 31 March 2005, representing a 35% decrease of
HK$29,805,000 as compared with last year. The net decrease in
turnover was primarily attributable to (1) the substantial drop of
HK$32,721,000 in broadband data networks and Internet backbone
solutions as a result of the Group’s strategic scaling down this segment
business line; (2) the decrease of HK$21,142,000 in e-commerce
solutions and related IT consultancy services; and (3) the increase of
HK$26,775,000 in revenue from mobile value added services (‘“MVAS”)
due to the Group focus on the expansion of this business segment

throughout the year.

Turnover from MVAS business increased by 372% to HK$33,976,000
for the year. This remarkable growth reflected the successful expansion
of the Group’s mobile subscriber base and marketing strategy. Such
growth was achieved by building up a strategic alliance with local and
international premium contents providers and media, and taking right
direction to launch its product services of Short Messaging Services
(“SMS”), Wireless Application Protocol (“WAP”) and Interactive Voice

Response Services (“IVRS”).

The Group’s gross profit decreased by HK$3,464,000 to
HK$20,642,000 for the year ended 31 March 2005, when compared
with HK$24,106,000 in last year. Gross profit margin improved from
28% to 38% as compared with that of last year. The overall gross
profit margin has achieved a higher ratio as a result of significant portion
of the Group’s revenue was generated from MVAS business that

maintained a relatively high gross profit margin.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis &2 BT & 247

Loss Attributable to Shareholders and Operating Expenses

The Group recorded a net loss from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders of HK$31,809,000 for the year ended 31 March 2005,
representing a decrease of approximately 23% compared with that of

last year.

The Group’s other revenue decreased by 12% to HK$1,877,000
compared with HK$2,140,000 of last year. This was attributable to
the exchange gain of HK$493,000 and decrease in the sundry income

of HK$772,000.

The overall operating expenses were maintained at the same level of
last year. General and administrative expenses slightly declined by
2% to HK$42,582,000 for the year. Such decrease was primarily
attributable to the fall in the deprecation of fixed assets by
HK$1,941,000 and rental charge by HK$557,000. Such decreased
expenses were partially offset by the increase in staff costs of
HK$1,872,000 as the full year operation of MVAS business. Selling
and distribution costs slightly reduced by 2% to HK$18,796,000 when
compared with HK$19,168,000 in last year.

Other operating expenses increased to HK$2,339,000 when compared
to HK$493,000 in the previous year, representing an increase of
approximately HK$1,846,000. This was mainly caused by significant
increase in the staff costs of HK$1,156,000 as a result of a larger
number of research and development staff and for the provision for
inventories of HK$586,000. In addition, the Group made a provision
for doubtful debts in the sum of HK$1,028,000 as the Group has
continued to adopt a more prudent view to make provision for long

outstanding debts especially the debts for more than one year.

During the financial year under review, the Group received a Hong
Kong profits tax refund of HK$503,000 and a total subvention of
HK$558,000 from the PRC governmental authority.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Financial Position, Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2005, shareholders’ fund of the Group amounted to
HK$46,639,000, representing a decrease of HK$31,605,000 from the
previous year. The Group’s total assets amounted to HK$68,486,000,
representing a decrease of HK$40,239,000 from the previous year.
Total liabilities amounted to HK$21,847,000, representing a decrease
of HK$8,634,000 from the previous year. The Group had net current
assets of HK$40,776,000 compared with that of HK$72,561,000 as
at 31 March 2004. The Group maintained a healthy liquidity position
with a current ratio of 2.9 as at 31 March 2005 (2004: 3.4).

During the year, the Group financed its operations mainly with its
operating revenue, internal resources, balance of proceeds from initial
public offering and banking facilities. As at 31 March 2005, the Group
had cash and bank balances including pledged bank deposits of
HK$33,958,000, compared with last year of HK$55,929,000. Overall,
the Group’s financial and liquidity positions remain at a stable and
healthy level and the Directors of the Company believe that it has
adequate financial resources to support its business objectives in the

coming year.

The Group adheres to a prudent cash and financial management policy.
In order to achieve better cost controls and minimize cost of funds,
the Group’s treasury activities are centralized and the cash is generally
placed on deposits, mostly denominated in Renminbi, United States

dollars and Hong Kong dollars.

Gearing Ratio
As at 31 March 2005, the gearing ratio of the Group, as a ratio of total
borrowings to shareholders’ fund was 0.2% (2004: 0.3%).

Capital Structure
The shares of the Company were listed on GEM on 28 March 2000.
There has been no change in the capital structure of the Company

since that date.
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Significant Investments and Disposals

In 2002, the Group entered into an agreement with an independent
third party (the “Purchaser”) for the disposal of a 16% equity interest
in a Sino-foreign jointly-controlled entity in the PRC (the “Investment”)
for an aggregate consideration of HK$9,160,000 (the “Consideration”).
In 2004, the Group commenced claiming payment of certain charges
(“Claim”), including the late payment interest and the PRC tax levies,
from the Purchaser. As at 31 March 2005, the Group has not yet
transferred the legal title of the Investment (the “Title Transfer”) to the
Purchaser. The Group stopped pursuing the Claim against the
Purchaser and has written to the Purchaser to request for completion
of the Title Transfer. Pursuant to the opinion of the Group’s PRC lawyer,
the Title Transfer is now subject to the Purchaser effecting and
completing the statutory procedures with the related PRC government
authorities as required by the PRC law. Accordingly, the Consideration
was recognised as proceeds on disposal of a long term investment in

the current year.

Save as disclosed above, there were no material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies by the Company

during the year under review.

Foreign Currency Exchange Exposure and Treasury Policies

Most of the Group’s trading transactions, assets and liabilities were
denominated in Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong
dollars. As the exchange rate of Renminbi and United States dollars
to Hong Kong dollars are fairly stable, the Directors believe that the
impact of the foreign exchange exposure of the Group is minimal and
has no significant adverse effect on the normal operations of the Group.

As at 31 March 2005, no related hedges were made by the Group.

Capital Commitment
As at 31 March 2005, the Group had capital commitment contracted
for investment in a subsidiary in the PRC for the amount of

HK$3,900,000.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant commitment

at the balance sheet date.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis B2 E:{i# & 24

Banking Facilities

As at 31 March 2005, the Group was granted banking facilities of
HK$9,803,000 that were secured by the Group’s bank deposits of
HK$444,000. As at 31 March 2005, the banking facilities utilised by
the Group amounted to HK$444,000.

Contingent Liabilities

During the year, an action was commenced in the United States of
America (“U.S.A”) by Grace & Digital Information Technology Co., Ltd.
(“GDIT”) against the Company and certain parties. GDIT’s allegations
include the Company’s interference with a contract, pursuant to which
GDIT agreed to act as a representative of a company to procure
contracts with a bank in the PRC for banking software. GDIT seeks
compensatory damages against the Company and certain other
defendant for a sum in excess of about US$59 million. GDIT also seeks
unspecified punitive damages against the Company and that other

defendant.

The Company instructed its lawyer to file a motion to quash service of
GDIT’s complaint and in the event that such motion to quash is denied,
the Company plans to vigorously defend this matter. The Company’s
lawyer as to US law has advised that no discovery has occurred at
this stage and it is too early to predict the outcome of this case or to
estimate losses, if any. Accordingly, in the opinion of the Directors, a

provision for the action is not considered necessary at this stage.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material contingent

liabilities.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The total number of employees of the Group was 176 as at 31 March
2005 (2004: 152). The Group’s remuneration policy is basically
determined by the performance of individual employees and the market
condition. In addition to salaries, employee benefits included medical

scheme, pension contributions and share option schemes.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Mobile Value Added Services

MVAS business is becoming an important segment of the Group’s
business. The Group has been introducing and prompting value added
services by leveraging its strategic relationships with telecommunications
operators in China. During the financial year under review, the MVAS
business sector demonstrates a very strong momentum of fast growth
in the Group while other business segments generally suffered a
slowdown development. The revenue of MVAS business accounted
substantially for the Group’s revenue, i.e. approximately 62% of the

Group’s revenue in the current year.

During the year, the telecom industry went through a series of reforms
under the tightening up regulations imposed by the Ministry of
Information Industry and the Chinese telecommunications operators
in mobile value added services industry. The Group’s MVAS revenue
was impacted during the third quarter of this year. However, the Group
recovered from the setback by the end of the third quarter. The Group’s
MVAS revenue made progressive improvement in the last quarter of

2005 financial year.

During the year, the rate of increase of number of subscribers is
tremendous, the Group expects that MVAS business will become a
very lucrative business of the Group in the long run. Besides, the Group
succeeded to build up business alliances and profit sharing
arrangements with existing content providers, technology partners,
services partners, media enterprises and mobile phone vendors. The
large subscriber base is attractive to the network operators and other
potential device manufacturers with whom the Group cooperate. It is
expected to increase the demand for our MVAS services from the

existing subscribers.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

In addition, the MVAS team continued to develop its innovative value
added services products and invest in sales and marketing activities
to expand the Group’s subscriber base in order to increase revenue.
At the same time, the Group also concentrated to enhance its
subscriber loyalty by adopting appropriate marketing strategies such
as though joint marketing with telecommunications operators to
promote various value added services products. The Group believes
that it is in the right position to capitalise of the growth in usage of

mobile value added services in China.

To broaden the MVAS’s product portfolio, the Group has launched
the new services of Personal Handy-phone System Xiaolingtong value
added services (“PHS”), a wireless local access services using PHS
technology, and Multimedia Messaging Service (“MMS”), a
communication technology that allows users to exchange multimedia
communications between capable mobile phones and other devices,

in the current year.

As the Group has allocated more resources in IVRS since October
2004, the IVRS revenue grew substantially and accounted for about

18% of the Group’s MVAS revenue for the year.

Throughout the year, the Group held the following marketing events

with its business alliances:

e Allowed SMS and IVRS interactions between mobile users and
the Pageant contestants during Ms. Universe Pageant Contest
through the cooperation arrangement with China Network
Communications Group Corporation, China Telecom Corporation
Limited, China Mobile Communications Corporation (“China
Mobile”) and China United Telecommunications Corporation

(“China Unicom”);

e Launched out a product bidding event in conjunction with Beijing

Morning Post; and

e Developed and hosted SMS and IVRS voting platform to record
the caller voting for the most favorite contestants during Miss World

Pageant competition held in Sanya Hainan Province of China.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Looking forward, the Group will continue to invest more resources in
the marketing and promotion activities to increase and widen its

subscriber base especially in the WAP, MMS and IVRS sectors.

Application Software and IT and Networking Services

For the broadband data network and Internet backbone solutions
business, the Group was awarded the major contracts of kKiNETic™
BillCare 4.0 software upgrade and services by Shanghai Telecom,
Fujian 179 e-commerce upgrade and optimation services by Fujian
Telecom, the ATM/IP network upgrade and expansion contracts by
Ningxia Telecom, China Unicom VOIP phase six extension, Telecom
NTT Engineering Co., Ltd. IP network project, Fujian Unicom SMS call
center platform project, and China Unicom VOIP & 165 Network
Technical Services during the year. However, the Group continued to
scale down its business sector as the Group forecast weak demand

in this area in Mainland China.

In the coming year, the Group will focus on completion of its existing
projects, target of high profit margin service contracts, and the

collection of accounts receivable.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

In order to face the coming more intense competition in the market,
the Group allocated more resources in its research and development
team. The Group’s new strategic product named Mobile Intelligent
Navigation Engine (“MINE”) is a powerful search platform that enables
mobile users to use their nature language to ask for services and
information. In our first application of MINE Music Portal (“MMP”), it
enables the mobile users to search for various music content such as
ring-back tone, ring tone, and interactive voice response music-on-
demand services. In other words, the mobile users can through variety
mobile channels such as SMS and WAP search for music and

download music content directly into their mobile phones.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Group has gained major acceptance of China Mobile and China
Unicom, of the MINE. The Group has successfully made strategic
alliance with such telecommunications operators, several provinces
of them are poised to rollout the MMP services as part of their mobile
entertainment offering. Through launching the new services product
of MMP, the Group targets to become a major mobile music player by
capturing a dominant share in the music search engine market. The
Group is also looking into securing its revenue by arranging profit
sharing agreement with telecommunications operators. The Group also
actively works with several major handset manufacturers to deliver
MMP to mobile users by embedding MINE directly in their handsets.
The Group believes that MMP can provide the new music search
services to mobile users and can generate sustainable revenue to the

Group in the coming year.

OUTLOOK

The Group will continue to focus on MVAS business by offering SMS, MMS,
WAP, IVRS and ring-back tone services.

Since mobile customers have become more affluent and experienced in
China, it is crucial to develop high quality products for new users. The
Group has successful deployed its mobile search service (MINE) that allows
mobile customers to look for particular content immediately on their mobile
devices. This capability has opened up new business opportunities in the
wireless market. We believe that MINE will become a strategic product
alongside with our MVAS business. The Group will continue to develop
new wireless applications for SMS, MMS, WAP, IVRS and ring-back tone
services based on MINE technology. Our main objective is to allow users to
search and improve user’s experience and satisfaction when searching for

information on mobile phone.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis &2 BT & 247

The Group’s health and vigour is reflected from the market reception of our
products and services. With our rapid growth of wireless subscriber base
and strong support from telecommunication operators, the Group is
confident that the MVAS market in China will offer long-term opportunities.
The Group believes that it is under a healthy recovery path. Our key objective
is to accelerate MVAS business growth and return to profitability in the

financial year 2006.
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Directors and Senior Management EER SR EEE

Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Seng Mun, aged 74, is a founder and the Chairman of the Group.
He is responsible for formulating the overall business strategy and plans of
the Group. Mr. Yip worked for Cable & Wireless HKT for about 20 years
and was one of the senior executives in its PRC operations. Mr. Yip is the

father of Mr. Yip Heon Ping, Mr. Yip Heon Wai and Mr. Yip Heon Keung.

Mr. Yip Heon Ping, aged 47, is an executive Director and the General
Manager of the Group in charge of the Group’s overall management function.
He holds a bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering from lowa State
University, USA. He worked for Hewlett Packard for more than 10 years
before joining the Group in December 1992. Mr. Yip is a son of Mr. Yip
Seng Mun and a brother of Mr. Yip Heon Wai and Mr. Yip Heon Keung.

Mr. Yip Heon Wai, aged 44, is a founder and the Managing Director of the
Group in charge of the overall corporate strategies and business
development of the Group. He holds a bachelor’s degree in applied computer
science from lllinois State University, USA. Mr. Yip is a son of Mr. Yip Seng

Mun and a brother of Mr. Yip Heon Ping and Mr. Yip Heon Keung.

Mr. Yip Heon Keung, aged 35, is an executive Director of the Group in
charge of strategic alliances with vendors and business partners. He is
also the Compliance Officer and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. He is a Program for Management Development graduate
from Harvard University and holds a bachelor’s degree in electrical
engineering from the University Wisconsin-Madison, USA. Before joining
the Group, he worked in a software-consulting firm as a consultant in the
USA. He has been with the Group since October 1996. Mr. Yip is a son of
Mr. Yip Seng Mun and a brother of Mr. Yip Heon Ping and Mr. Yip Heon
Wai.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. James T. Siano, aged 45, is an independent non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Siano holds a
master’s degree in business administration from Pace University, USA. He
has 23 years’ experience in sales, marketing and finance, including 14 years
in Hong Kong. Mr. Siano is currently the president and the chief executive
officer of Montblanc Pacific Distributors Ltd. which is the Asia Pacific regional
headquarters for the Montblanc brand. Prior to that, Mr. Siano was the

managing director of Swatch Group of Switzerland (Hong Kong) Ltd.
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Directors and Senior Management EER SR EEE

Mr. Au Shing Kwok, aged 64, is an independent non-executive Director,
and a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. Mr. Au obtained a diploma in electrical engineering from
Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology (Australia) and has been a chartered
engineer since 1980 and a member of Institute of Engineers (Australia) since
1969. Mr. Au has worked as a building services consulting engineer before
and involved in the design and project management of building services for

a number of major buildings in Hong Kong, the PRC and overseas.

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine, aged 34, is an independent non-executive
Director, and a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Ms. Tse graduated from the Northern lllinois
University, USA with a bachelor’s degree in computer science. Ms. Tse is
currently employed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of a prestigious bank in
Hong Kong. Prior to that, she had worked in the software application field

for more than 10 years.
Senior Management

Ms. Cheung Ka Yee is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and is in
charge of the Group’s overall financial matters. Ms. Cheung holds a diploma
in accountancy and a master degree in business administration (Financial
Services) from Hong Kong. She is a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. She has over 13 years’ experience in accounting,

auditing, taxation and finance.

Ms. Lo Oi Ling is the Company Secretary of the Group and is in charge of
the Group’s overall company secretarial matters. Ms. Lo holds a master
degree in business administration from the United Kingdom and is a member
of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. She has more than 14 years’

experience in the company secretarial field.
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Report of the Directors EE S &

The directors (the “Directors”) of Prosten Technology Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) are pleased to present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2005.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements. There were no changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

Results and dividends

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2005 and the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 39 to 84.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2005.

Summary financial information

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years.
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Results 4
Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=+—-HLEE
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
—RFRE -TTNF ZTT-F ZTT-F ZTTF
TER FHT FAT FHT FET
TURNOVER L 54,791 84,596 31,692 100,679 186,122
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BREATEF, (E51R) (33,109) (40,198)  (112,828)  (165,408) 11,525
Tax BIE 1,300 (922) 2,290 (31) 2,442
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM ORDINARY &
ACTVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE TO BEEBERN,
SHAREHOLDERS (B18) %% (31,809) (41,120)  (110,538)  (165,439) 13,967
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Summary financial information (continued) HMEERBE @
Assets and liabilities EEHAE
As at 31 March
R=BA=+-H
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
—ERRE —TTNF —TT=F =—TT-F —TT—F
FEx FET FET FET FET
Fixed assets BETEE 4,415 2,872 5,779 11,173 18,813
Deferred development costs EEHEE A - - - 2,175 5,542
Intangible asset BEREE - - 5,922 44,359 45,889
Deposits and club debentures e REHMES 1,448 2,904 1,512 2,272 3,279
Long term investment RERE - - - 10,372 -
Deposit paid for the proposed BERlBERERE
acquisition of a long term investment Bffzil& - - - - 3,114
Current assets TEEE 62,623 102,949 129,556 187,044 361,794
Current liabilities TEARE (21,847) (30,388) (23,628) (27,262) (43,296)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE - (93) - (471) -
Total net assets BESFERRE 46,639 78,244 119,141 229,662 395,135
Issued capital BETIRA 51,125 51,125 51,125 51,125 51,125
Reserves G (4,486) 27,119 68,016 178,537 344,010
46,639 78,244 119,141 229,662 395,135
Fixed assets BEEEE

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the year are

set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Share capital and share options

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or issued

share capital during the year. Details of movements in the share options

during the year, together with reasons therefor, are set out in note 28 to the

financial statements.

Pre-emptive rights
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There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Purchase, redemption or sale of listed securities of the
Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or

sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements and in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.
Distributable reserves

At 31 March 2005, the Company had no reserve available for distribution
as calculated in accordance with the Companies Law (2001 Revision) of
the Cayman Islands. Under the laws of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The
share premium account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

Major customers and suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 57% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 34%. Purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for 62% of the total purchases for the year

and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to 30%.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors, their
associates, nor any shareholders who own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers during the year, except that two
major shareholders of one of the five largest suppliers are the mother-in-
law and sister-in-law of Mr. Yip Heon Ping, a Director and major shareholder
of the Company.
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Report of the Directors EE & &

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year were as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Yip Seng Mun
Mr. Yip Heon Ping
Mr. Yip Heon Wai
Mr. Yip Heon Keung

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. James T. Siano

Mr. Au Shing Kwok

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine (appointed on 1 January 2005)
In accordance with article 108 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr.
James T. Siano and Mr. Au Shing Kwok will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the “Meeting”).

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine appointed pursuant to article 112 of the
Company’s articles of association, will hold office until the Meeting and,

being eligible, will offer herself for re-election at the Meeting.

Independent non-executive Directors’ confirmations of
independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the Rules Governing the Listing of the Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The
Company considers all of its independent non-executive Directors to be

independent.
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Directors’ service contracts

Each executive Director has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of one year commencing from 1 April 2003 (the “Service
Contracts”) which will be renewed automatically each year for successive
terms of one year subject to termination by either party giving not less than
three months’ notice in writing to the other party. Pursuant to the
supplemental agreements entered into between each executive Director
and the Company on 1 April 2004, the terms of the Service Contracts were
extended for a fixed term of three years commencing from 1 April 2004
and expiring on 31 March 2007, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in accordance with the Company’s articles of association. Otherwise
than as amended by the supplemental agreements, all other provisions of
the Service Contracts shall remain in full force and effect.

Mr. James T. Siano and Mr. Au Shing Kwok have entered into letters of
appointment with the Company as the independent non-executive Directors
of the Company (the “INED”) since 7 March 2000 that the INED are not
appointed for specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association. Pursuant to the
supplemental letters signed between the INED and the Company on 1
January 2005, the terms of appointment of the INED were fixed for a term
of three years commencing from 1 January 2005, subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association. Otherwise than as amended by the supplemental letters which
shall form part of the appointment letters, the terms and conditions of the

appointment letters shall remain in full force and effect.

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company as an independent non-executive Director of the Company for
an initial term of one year commencing from 1 January 2005 and is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at the Meeting
has a service contract with the Company in respect of his/her service to
the Company in the capacity of a Director which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.
Directors’ interests in contracts

Except as detailed in note 34 to the financial statements, no Director had a
material beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or

existed during the year.

Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares

At 31 March 2005, the interests and short positions of the Directors in the
share capital of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”) pursuant to Rule
5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company

EBEN

FRALER VR EBEREEREEASEERHE
REDEE 2K

EERROREBRD 2EBERAR

RZZEZERAF=A=+—0 BEARAREESFR
BN ([FBEREBEEN) £35206F 8 2 & i
PR - SUIRIRIRAIZEIR E R A5 46i8MALDE K
EBMERSBRAR (M) EL @M - 2
SRR F REBEER (REH RS BROIEXVE 2
EE) LA 2 ERRKBIT ¢

RARBIR D ZIFE

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest
FREROHE - BERERREE

Through Percentage of

Directly spouse Through the Company’s

beneficially or minor controlled Beneficiary issued

Name of Director Notes owned children corporation of a trust Total  share capital

EBERE EARAT

H+ N ZBR% 2817

BExEpnR Bt HEERES UTFF+% 2ZE AR EAEZHEA 5t BRAE 2

Mr. Yip Heon Ping 1) - - - 404,280,619 404,280,619 79.08%
SR ot

Mr. Yip Seng Mun @ - - 248,349,584 - 248,349,584 48.58%
ERERLE

Notes: e

(1) These shares were held by Greenford Company Limited, Century Technology
Holding Limited and Bakersfield Global Corporation as trustees of The
Greenford Unit Trust, The Century Unit Trust and The Bakersfield Unit Trust,
respectively, all the units of which were held by Cititrust (Cayman) Limited as
trustee of The New Millennium Trust, a discretionary family trust established
with Mr. Yip Heon Ping as the discretionary object for the time being.

(2)  These shares were held by Century Technology Holding Limited and Bakersfield
Global Corporation and were beneficially owned by Mr. Yip Seng Mun.

(1) #ZZEMH B Greenford Company Limited - Century
Technology Holding Limited [z Bakersfield Global
Corporation % Bl LA The Greenford Unit Trust  The

Century Unit Trust % The Bakersfield Unit Trust 2 %5

ANFD3FHE - EFTA BRI A Cititrust (Cayman) Limited

LA The New Millennium Trust 2 3t A &0 #H4E © M

The New Millennium Trust Ty & B LA ZE M 52 4 R 2

ERAEHRMBEZREZHEET -
(2)  ZZFD HCentury Technology Holding Limited &

Bakersfield Global Corporation ## » W HEER LA
EnlA -

REMZERAERAR —ZTRFFR
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Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares (continued)

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company are
separately disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements.

In addition to the above, certain Directors have non-beneficial personal
equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the benefit of the Company
solely for the purpose of complying with the requirement for the minimum
number of shareholders.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2005, none of the Directors of
the Company had registered an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Rule
5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above and in the share option
schemes disclosures in note 28 to the financial statements, at no time during
the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate granted to
any Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, their spouse or minor
children to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Share option schemes

Concerning the share options granted to the Directors, employees and
others as detailed in note 28 to the financial statements, the Directors do
not consider it appropriate to disclose a theoretical value of the share options
granted, because in the absence of a readily available market value for
share options on the ordinary shares of the Company, the Directors were
unable to arrive at an accurate assessment of the value of the share options.
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Substantial shareholders

At 31 March 2005, the following interests of 5% or more in the issued share

capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests required

to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares of the Company

Capacity and
Name Notes nature of interest
RREH ik ERERIRMEE
Greenford Company Limited (1) Directly beneficially owned
EREREE
Century Technology Holding 2) Directly beneficially owned
Limited HEEZHES

Bakersfield Global Corporation Q)

EREREE

Cititrust (Cayman) Limited 4) Through controlled corporations
BERZESA

Notes:

1

Directly beneficially owned

The entire issued share capital of Greenford Company Limited is beneficially
owned by Mr. Yip Heon Ping, a Director of the Company.

The entire issued share capital of Century Technology Holding Limited is
beneficially owned by Mr. Yip Seng Mun, a Director of the Company.

The entire issued share capital of Bakersfield Global Corporation is beneficially
owned by Mr. Yip Seng Mun, a Director of the Company.

404,280,619 shares were held through Greenford Company Limited, Century
Technology Holding Limited and Bakersfield Global Corporation as trustee of
The Greenford Unit Trust, The Century Unit Trust and The Bakersfield Unit
Trust, respectively, all of the units of which were held by Cititrust (Cayman)
Limited as trustee of The New Millennium Trust, a discretionary family trust
established with Mr. Yip Heon Ping as the discretionary object for the time
being. Cititrust (Cayman) Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Citibank
Overseas Investment Corporation which in turn is owned by Citibank N.A.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2005, no person, other than the

Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out under the heading

“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”

above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying

shares of the Company that was required to be recorded under Section
336 of the SFO.

FERR
RZZZTRF=ZA=1+—8  REZLRIFESEME
336{KIRTF 2 B MAATEH, - AN AFEEITIRAFS%

AL ST

RAERBIR D ZIFE

GG

Percentage of
the Company’s

Number of issued share
ordinary shares capital
EARDT D BT

ZEREE RAET DL
155,931,035 30.50%
155,931,035 30.50%
92,418,549 18.08%
404,280,619 79.08%

Greenford Company Limited 2 B & 217 A% 2N B A2 7
EFENTEEERES ©

Century Technology Holding Limited 2 #F 2 317 B¢ 7K R
ARREFEBERILAEREES °
Bakersfield Global Corporatlon BB BEITIRAB AR

RERXERAETRRAES

£ 404,280,619 A& %1% B Greenford Company Limited

+ Century Technology Holding Limited }zBakersfield
Global Corporation % 5| JAThe Greenford Unit Trust
The Century Unit Trust X The Bakersfield Unit Trust
XEAFNOFEAE o FiE BB EM I HCititrust (Cayman)
Limited LA The New Millennium TrustZ 3t A H 12355 ©
The New Millennium Trust & —18 & B LAZE ) F 55 £
EREAEHRMER 2 2EKIK(SFT o Cititrust (Cayman)
Limited A& Citibank Overseas Investment Corporation 2
24 MBAT - MCitibank Overseas Investment
Corporation X ACitibank N.A.FT#A °

ﬁ?ixﬁﬂ)ﬁ'ﬁﬂg%%' RZZEZRF=A=+—H0 #
BIMAL (RRRES (REZESIIN EXESRH
Pt K48 Eﬁﬂx@Z%)_\ KR —ER) BRI A AR
BB 2 EFAR - MACERIRIEE

KBNS G PIE 336G RIF 2 B MA
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Directors’ interests in competing businesses

None of the Directors, the management shareholders or the substantial
shareholders of the Company, or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the business
of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with the Group.

Board practices and procedures

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the Board
Practices and Procedures as set out in Rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM
Listing Rules throughout the year.

Code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has also made specific enquiry of all Directors and the
Company are not aware of any non-compliance with the required standard
of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors adopted by the Company throughout the year.

Audit committee

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) on
7 March 2000 with written terms in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.
Pursuant to the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Code on CG
Practice”) effective on 1 January 2005, the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee were revised on 17 June 2005 on terms substantially the same
as the provisions set out in the Code on CG Practice. The revised terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision
of the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control procedures,
review of the Group’s financial information and review of the relationship
with the auditors of the Company. Regular meetings have been held by the
Audit Committee since its establishment. The Audit Committee met twice
during the year.

The existing Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive

Directors of the Company, namely Mr. James T. Siano (Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Au Shing Kwok and Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine.
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Audit committee (continued)

The Group’s audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2005
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, who are of the opinion that
such statements comply with the applicable accounting standards, the GEM
Listing Rules and legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures have
been made.

Remuneration committee

In accordance with the requirements of the Code on CG Practices, the
Company established its remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) on 17 June 2005 with written terms of reference. The
Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Au Shing Kwok (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine and one executive
Director, Mr. Yip Heon Keung.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Company’s board of Directors on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
and reviewing the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management by reference to corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Company’s board of Directors from time to time. Terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the Company’s board
of Directors on 17 June 2005 are posted on the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the chairman and/or the
managing Director of the Company about their proposals relating to
remuneration package and other human resources issues of the Directors
and senior management of the Company. The emoluments of Directors are
based on the skill, knowledge and involvement in the Company’s affairs of
each Director and are determined by reference to the Company’s
performance and profitability, as well as remuneration benchmark in the

industry and the prevailing market conditions.
Sufficiency of public float

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the GEM Listing Rules based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors of the Company.
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Auditors ZEED

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of LKAV BB EMSEE  ARRHERAE LIRS

the Company will be proposed at the Meeting. RER - WBREEBARNT ZZEA -
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD REESE

Yip Seng Mun EER

Chairman FE

Hong Kong, 17 June 2005 &5 ZETRFANATLEAR
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Report of the Auditors #ZZ{EMRE

Ell ERNST & YOUNG

Z R & W OF KO

To the members
Prosten Technology Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 39 to 84 which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in Hong Kong.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial statements
which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently. It is our responsibility to form
an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those financial statements
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.
Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
An audit includes an examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s and the Group’s

circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in
the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable

basis for our opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2005 and of the
loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst and Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
17 June 2005

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2005

BMRR - DB HRRRUNEEBA TR B0
Ak BEER_ZETRF=R=T—RZHBHRRILR
EEEHEZALFEZBARRERE  YEER
BERBGPIZRBEERZERS -

RKEFHEIEHFT
HEETED

EHE
—ZEERFXA+EA



Consolidated Profit and Loss Account Z&E %R

Year ended 31 March 2006 #HZ —FTZEhF=FA=+—HIFE

2005 2004
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
—BBET —zEmE
B aE FExT FHBT
TURNOVER =E 3 4 54,791 84,596
Cost of sales SHE A (34,149) (60,490)
Gross profit EF 20,642 24,106
Other revenue H s 4 1,877 2,140
Selling and distribution costs HE kDA (18,796) (19,168)
General and administrative expenses —RRITHAX (42,582) (43,566)
Other operating expenses H b i (2,339) (493)
Gain on disposal of a long term investment & R & s 15 9,160 -
Impairment of an intangible asset B EERE = (3,198)
Provision for doubtful debts REREES (1,028) -
LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REZEEE 5 (33,066) (40,179)
Finance costs 758 A 6 (43) (19)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BB AT 18 (33,109) (40,198)
Tax IR 9 1,300 (922)
NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES REELBEXK
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS EEREE 10 (31,809) (41,120)
LOSS PER SHARE BREE 11
Basic HA (HK6.2) (HK8.0)
centsiE Il centsiB Il
Diluted s N/A (HK8.0)
TEA centsiB Il

REMSERERAR —ZTTAFFER
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Consolidated Balance Sheet &8 EEABER

31 March 2005 —ZFZEhF=A=+—H

2005 2004
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
—ZZThHEF —EENE
P 5 FExT FH&T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Fixed assets EE&E 12 4,415 2,872
Intangible asset mREE 13 - -
Deposits and club debentures HEASA e 14 1,448 2,904
Long term investment REIGE 15 - -
5,863 5,776
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories 58 18 3,176 10,079
Trade receivables & ILBR 5k 19 17,183 21,270
Prepayments, deposits TERFIE ek
and other receivables H b e IR 6,746 7,127
Short term investments EERIEE 20 1,560 8,544
Pledged bank deposits BEBBITFER 21 444 3,363
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 21 33,514 52,566
62,623 102,949
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables FETBR SR 22 12,866 13,908
Tax payable FERIHEIE 894 1,242
Accrued liabilities, deposits received EitaE - BERET& Rk
and other payables H Ath FE A 3RIR 23 7,994 15,105
Current portion of finance lease payables B & E T IR
Z BNEAER 17 24 93 133
21,847 30,388
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 40,776 72,561
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEH#E
CURRENT LIABILITIES BARBEE 46,639 78,337
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEE
Non-current portion of finance & E R IR
lease payables Z JEBNEREB (n 24 - 93
46,639 78,244
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARRFE
Issued capital B BT 27 51,125 51,125
Reserves & 29 (4,486) 27,119
46,639 78,244
Yip Seng Mun Yip Heon Keung
Chairman Director
EBER AL
FE Ed
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity i8S 8HK

Year ended 31 March 2006 #HZ —FTZEhF=FA=+—HIFE

Reserves f#f&
Issued Share Statutory Exchange Accumul-
share premium reserve fluctuation ated
capital account fund reserve losses Sub-total Total
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$O000 HKE000 HK$H000 HK$000
ER1T 4 EE B Rt

R wEER REEE  RKBRE 3] et Bt
TR TR TR TR TR TET TR

At 1 April 2003 R-ET=f
MA—H 51,125 339,275 - 112 (271,371) 68,016 119,141
Exchange differences arising 44 /&4
on consolidation of MEBARERE

overseas subsidiariesand  MELZ
gains not recognised inthe [ . =88 R AR

profit and loss account B RER 2 W - - - 223 - 223 223
Net loss for the year ERNEREE - - - - (41,120)  (41,120) (41,120)
Transfer to statutory BREEE

reserve fund EEED - - 53 - (53) - -
At 31 March 2004 and R-ZTE

1 April 2004 ZA=+—H8K

—TTmE
MA—H 51,125 339,275 o8 335  (312,544) 27,119 78,244
Exchange differences arising #: & /&4h

on consolidation of NI

overseas subsidiaries and ~ E£EZ

gains not recognised inthe  [EX ZBR AR

profit and loss account ERRER 2K - - - 204 - 204 204
Net loss for the year FHEEFE - - - - (31,809)  (31,809) (31,809)
At 31 March 2005 RZETREF

=A=t+—H 51,125 339,275 08 539  (344,353) (4,486) 46,639

REMSERERAR —ZTTAFFER
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Z&HE&RER

Year ended 31 March 20056 BZE-ZFThF=FA=+—HIFE

2005 2004
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
—ZZThHEF —EENE
P 5 FExT FH&T
CASH FLOWS FROM REXBCHRENE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BRTE A E 1B (33,109) (40,198)
Adjustments for: KT SIA
Finance costs B 7% & F 6 43 19
Interest income FEHA 4 (834) (925)
Investment income ‘ERA 4 (507) (400)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets o B E B EE R 5 7 351
Gain on disposal of a long term investment HE R E NS 5 (9,160) =
Depreciation e 5 2,204 4,145
Amortisation of an intangible asset B EEEH 5 - 2,724
Impairment of an intangible asset mREERE 5 - 3,198
Provision for doubtful debts AR 5 1,028 —
Provision for inventories FEREE 5 586 =
Operating loss before working capital changes & & 4 2B < £ 45518 (39,742) (31,086)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and Ao REESRD (M)
club debentures 30(i) 121 (1,392)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TFERD, (3Em) 6,317 (303)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables FEURBR TR > (385 40) 3,059 (718)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEfIFRIE « B]e REAM
deposits and other receivables FEMR IR R L (35 40) 381 (2,781)
Decrease/(increase) in short term investments 58 H3% & R4 (3E40) 6,984 (5,326)
Decrease in trade payables JE 1~ BR SRR (1,042) (296)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities, EsrafE - 2WEIe Rk
deposits received and other payables H b AT RIEE I, Cd)  30(i) 2,049 (1,917)
Exchange differences arising on consolidation #r& /& 9N B A AR B &AL
of overseas subsidiaries ZIEHERE 192 229
Cash used in operations RAREEXEB 2 RE (21,681) (43,590)
Interest received 2 HFIE 834 925
Investment income received B2 & W= 507 400
Interest paid BEAFE (43) (19)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded REHBFEH 503 -
Overseas taxes refunded R [BE N IR 558 -
Overseas taxes paid BN IE (109) (1,112)
Net cash outflow from operating activities R BT 7 IR ST R R (19,431) (43,396)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued) 2SR ERER (&)

Year ended 31 March 2006 #HZ —FTZEhF=FA=+—HIFE

2005 2004
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
—EETRHF —TENF
Bt 5E FERT FHET
Net cash outflow from operating activities EBEIE 7SR R (19,431) (43,396)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REXEBZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of fixed assets BAREEE 30() (2,412) (1,265)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 5 B FE & E P15 5E 5 69
Deposits received for disposal of HE—BREAKREZ
a long term investment BEET & 23 - 9,030
Release of pledged bank deposits BRI IR TF K 2,919 546
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged time REBARRR=EAA
deposits with original maturity of more than 21| 8 > #&# # 72 B 75 7%
three months when acquired A, (3 hn) 33,144 (33,144)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from REEBZRLRA
investing activities (7 ) F& 33,656 (24,764)
CASH FLOWS FROM Al E B
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ZEERE
Capital element of finance lease MEMSEZNHE2 2
rental payments PiNC =) (133) (173)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BEFB2HEE ML FE (133) (173)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HeRBEEEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i, (RD) B8 14,092 (68,333)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUzRER
beginning of year REFEY 19,422 87,755
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERZES
AT END OF YEAR REESEEY 33,514 19,422
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReERBESZEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R
Cash and bank balances e MRS 21 4,583 14,449
Non-pledged time deposits placed TR TEHERER
at financial institutions with original R=EAAEEZ
maturity of less than three months IR T B TFE R 28,931 -
Other liquid funds HinREHE S 21 - 4,973
33,514 19,422
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Balance Sheet EE& &R

31 March 2005 —ZFZEhF=A=+—H

2005 2004
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
—EEHF e eSS
B = FET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries S INEPNCIPE: o 17 47,381 78,462
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIE ek
other receivables H IR 145 142
Cash and bank balances R RIRTT 4R 21 56 49
201 191
CURRENT LIABILITIES FEBEE
Accrued liabilities and other payables FERT B E R E AL /I8 1,415 829
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEERE (1,214) (638)
46,167 77,824
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR G
Issued capital BT 27 51,125 51,125
Reserves (ke 29 (4,958) 26,699
46,167 77,824
Yip Seng Mun Yip Heon Keung
Chairman Director
EER E-q e
E EFE
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& 3R 3% Mzt

31 March 2006 —ZEZEAF=FA=+—H

Corporate Information

At 31 March 2005, the principal place of business of Prosten
Technology Holdings Limited was located at Unit 2402, Bank of
America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong. Subsequent to the
balance sheet date, the principal place of business was moved to
Room 1506, 15/F, Tai Tung Building, 8 Fleming Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the provision of broadband
data networks and Internet backbone solutions, applications software,
e-commerce solutions and related IT consultancy services, mobile

value added services and investment holding.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which also include
Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”) and
interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for the re-measurement of short term investments

as explained in the respective accounting policy below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March
2005. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are consolidated from or to their effective dates of acquisition or
disposal, respectively. All significant intercompany transactions and

balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is a company whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from

its activities.

DREH

R-ZETRF=A=1+—H8 REREERER
RAEZ EFEEEMBNEBERE1 25X HIR
THRD2402% - #£HE B - TEEEMIHEEBE
H 8B IEMRBAESTR AR A E 15181506 °

FA - ARE X RRERASIBER LB
WEBRIORTE - BRRM - EFEERBRT
ERBEAMZER 2 BARE - BEIEER
% ARIRERR -

EEEHBRHME

fmBLEE
ZEPBHRIBEHBESHANRIGRMAZE
AUBRREN (MEREEEHEREL(['
AEBKEA]) k2R BEEBRMIERR
AR BB R RGP Z REREMRE - R TXE
S BRI 2 MR E BRI E N - AR
WRTIRIREE L A B AR R -

REEE

REMBHRERREEE ST AF=A=1+—H
I FEARBREMB AR ZME®RE - FAE
AHEZMBARZ FERZE AR ZERK
BREFAZRAMBHERA  SGFEERHER
B EEERARRRZEAR S Mg - 9F

AR -
BB A F]

/B8 X R Th 38 AN A ) B 4 o P o R B s R A
SR BEEBEDAME L AR °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B 3&3R %R MisE @

31 March 2005 —ZFZEhF=A=+—H

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit and
loss account to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the Group’s share of the fair values of the identifiable
assets and liabilities acquired as at the date of acquisition, over the

cost of the acquisition.

To the extent that negative goodwill relates to expectations of future
losses and expenses that are identified in the acquisition plan and
that can be measured reliably, but which do not represent identified
liabilities as at the date of acquisition, that portion of negative goodwiill
is recognised as income in the consolidated profit and loss account

when the future losses and expenses are recognised.

To the extent that negative goodwill does not relate to identifiable
expected future losses and expenses as at the date of acquisition,
negative goodwill is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss
account on a systematic basis over the remaining average useful life
of the acquired depreciable/amortisable assets. The amount of any
negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of the acquired non-

monetary assets is recognised as income immediately.

Prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 “Business combinations” in 2001,
negative goodwill arising on acquisitions was eliminated against
consolidated reserves in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of
SSAP 30, the Group applied the transitional provision of the SSAP
that permitted such negative goodwill to remain credited to
consolidated reserves. Negative goodwill on acquisitions subsequent
to the adoption of the SSAP is treated according to the SSAP 30

negative goodwill accounting policy above.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B R &R Kz @)

31 March 2006 —ZEZEAF=FA=+—H

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Negative goodwill (continued)

On disposal of subsidiaries, the gain or loss on disposal is calculated
by reference to the net assets at the date of disposal, including the
attributable amount of negative goodwill which has not been recognised
in the consolidated profit and loss account and any relevant reserves
as appropriate. Any attributable negative goodwill previously credited
to the consolidated reserves at the time of acquisition is written back

and included in the calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly
or indirectly, to control the other party, or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties
are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control
or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or

corporate entities.

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of whether there
is any indication of impairment of any asset, or whether there is any
indication that an impairment loss previously recognised for an asset
in prior years may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such
indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the asset’s

value in use or its net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged
to the profit and loss account in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, when the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for

that revalued asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B 3&3R %R MisE @

31 March 2005 —ZFZEhF=A=+—H

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of an asset, however not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the profit
and loss account in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, when the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy

for that revalued asset.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the profit and loss account
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the
fixed asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that

asset.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the

cost of each asset over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold buildings 2.5% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 30% or over the lease terms,

whichever is shorter

Office equipment 30%
Computer equipment 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicles 30%

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed asset recognised
in the profit and loss account is the difference between the net sales

proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B R &R Kz @)

31 March 2006 —ZEZEAF=FA=+—H

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Deferred development costs
All research costs are charged to the profit and loss accounts as

incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised
and deferred only when the projects are clearly defined; the expenditure
is separately identifiable and can be measured reliably; there is
reasonable certainty that the projects are technically feasible; and the
products have commercial value. Product development expenditure

which does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised, using the straight-line method, over the
expected useful lives of the underlying products subject to a maximum
period of three years, commencing from the date when the products

are available as to use.

The unamortised balance of development costs is reviewed at the
end of each year and is written off to the extent that the unamortised
balance, taken together with further development and directly related

costs, is no longer likely to be recovered.

Intangible asset

The intangible asset represents the technology know-how over certain
specific software products and operating platforms developed by a
third party, and is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis
over a period of three years commencing from the date when the
technology know-how of the applicable software products is available

as to use.

The unamortised balance of the intangible asset is reviewed at the
end of each year and any impairment is written off to the extent that

the unamortised balance is no longer likely to be recovered.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B 3&3R %R MisE @

31 March 2005 —ZFZEhF=A=+—H

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leased assets

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as
finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases are included in fixed assets and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged
to the profit and loss account so as to provide a constant periodic

rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Rentals applicable to such operating leases are charged to the profit

and loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Long term investment

The long term investment is a non-trading investment in an unlisted
equity security intended to be held on a long term basis. The unlisted
security is stated at cost less any impairment losses that are considered
by the directors to be other than temporary. In situations where the
circumstances and events which led to an impairment cease to exist
and there is persuasive evidence that the new circumstances and
events will persist for the foreseeable future, the amount of the
impairment previously charged is credited to the profit and loss account

to the extent of the amount previously charged.

Short term investments

Short term investments are investments in investment funds held for
trading purposes and are stated at their fair values at the balance
sheet date. The gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of the investment funds are credited or charged to the profit and loss

account in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B R &R Kz @)

31 March 2006 —ZEZEAF=FA=+—H

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
after making due allowances for obsolete and slow-moving items. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be

incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at financial institutions, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted

as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the profit and loss account or in equity if it relates to
items that are recognised in the same or a different period directly in

equity.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

EESHBRHBE @

7E&

FERKABRAZHFIEMER ZREEA
iR - MARZIFEEMRBR REIEFE - A
BEREELTHEEET  NBEELRREK DA
FBREEDH  EEIEARBEXAZEADD
3 o AT FERGAEERTRRELAEES
2SS ARG E o

RERRSEEY

MEERERERME  REeERASFEMERE
FHR e RERFR - URAERZEEEZERR
EMR—RRBAKR=EA 2R - 3
RSB ACAMERRSCENERE IR
BRE - RERRBAMEERBRASER S EE
ZBEHMNZRITET - WEEREBERMNE - R
ERREFENDHETERE RERYBHEEZ
Re (BRESE MERSALNERZT @
IRz BEE

FrE®t

SRERAHRELRIER - SRR IEREERA
R WMEERR RN REERER AR
TBE AR - RIER RS -

BEEHBTERBEE  RNEEREEREZ
Aotk B EL (R B 765 PR i PR ik 2 RRTENEL R 2 PR B B
EEREIEL R -

REMSERERAR —ZTTAFFER

51



52

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B 3&3R %R MisE @

31 March 2005 —ZFZEhF=A=+—H

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences:

e except where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses,
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be

utilised:

e  except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be

utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B R &R Kz @)

31 March 2006 —ZEZEAF=FA=+—H

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Government grants
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching

conditions will be complied with.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,

on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the

goods sold;

(b) installation, system development and system design service
income, e-commerce solutions and related IT consultancy service
income, and mobile value added service income, when the

relevant services have been rendered; and

(c) interest income, on a time proportion basis taking into account

the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the profit and loss account as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions

vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group has joined a mandatory central pension scheme (the “CP
Scheme”) organised by the government in the People’s Republic of
China excluding Hong Kong (the “PRC?”), for the Group’s employees
in the PRC, the assets of which are held separately from those of the
Group. Contributions made are based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries and are charged to the profit and loss account as
they become payable, in accordance with the rules of the CP Scheme.
The employer’s contributions vest fully with the employees once they

are made.

Share option schemes

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. The financial impact of share
options granted under the share option schemes is not recorded in
the Company’s or the Group’s balance sheet until such time as the
options are exercised, and no charge is recorded in the profit and loss
account or balance sheet for their cost. Upon the exercise of share
options, the resulting shares issued are recorded by the Company as
additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the
excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the
shares is recorded by the Company in the share premium account.
Options which are cancelled prior to their exercise date, or which have

lapsed, are deleted from the register of outstanding options.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B R &R Kz @)

31 March 2006 —ZEZEAF=FA=+—H

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
translated at the applicable exchange rates ruling at that date.

Exchange differences are dealt with in the profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the net investment method.
The profit and loss accounts of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year, and their balance sheets are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting

translation differences are included in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average

exchange rates for the year.

Segment Information

Segment information is presented by way of two segment formats: (i)
on a primary segment reporting basis, by business segment; and (i)

on a secondary segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are organised and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments
represent a strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments. Summary details of the business

segments are as follows:

(@) Provision of broadband data networks and Internet backbone

solutions;

(b) Provision of applications software;
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B 3&3R %R MisE @

31 March 2005 —ZFZEhF=A=+—H

3. Segment Information (continued) 3. oHWER @
(c) Provision of e-commerce solutions and related IT consultancy () REBFHERAFREEEAREER
services; and IR Rk
(d) Provision of mobile value added services. 0 REBRILERS -
In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues are TEMEE AN S B[R 5 R - 9 EEIGHRERE P
attributed to the segments based on the location of the customers, FENEFE o EGEEREEMEME
and assets are attributed to the segments based on the location of FTE o
the assets.
(a) Business segments (a) ¥
The following tables present revenue, loss and certain asset, TREJNAREXEBHE 2 Wa - BERSE
liability and expenditure information for the Group’s business TEE  BERRALZEHR -
segments.
Group
rEE
Provision of
Provision of e-commerce
broadband solutions
data networks and related IT
and Internet Provision of consultancy services Provision of
backbone solutions applications RUETHE mobile value
RETABBALR software BALRREEANE added services Total
ERPIRERATER REERERS BEZBHARE RUBBEERYE -

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
“ZERF -TINE CZEBRF _TINE -ZBRF _TINE -SBRF _TINE -ZBRF _TENE

ThRL THL TEx TET THEL THL TEx TiET ThRL THL

(Note)
(Frzt)
Segment revenue: Al
Sales to external EFING
customers ®F 15,170 47,891 234 2,951 5411 26,653 33,976 7,201 54,791 84,596
Segment rests AELE @217)  (598)  (128)  (5921) 442 11,461 878 (058)  (3,025) (706)
Unallocated expenses RALER (41,078)  (41,613)
Other revenue H iz 1,877 2,140
Gain on disposal of a long HERS
term investment K&K 9,160 -
Loss from operating activiies ~ K& EKER (33,066)  (40,179)
Finance costs BBER (43) (19)
Loss before tax BRHAEE (33,109)  (40,198)
Tax HE 1,300 (©922)
Net loss from ordinary RRE
activities attributable BRER
to shareholders EEFE (31,809)  (41,120)
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31 March 2006 —ZEZEAF=FA=+—H

3. Segment Information (continued)

(@) Business segments (continued)

3.

7 EEF (&)

(@) ZE=HoE (&

Group
rEE

Provision of
Provision of e-commerce
broadband solutions
data networks and related IT
and Internet Provision of consultancy services
backbone solutions applications RUETHE
RUEBAUBEER software BARRREEANE
HREIRERARR REERARMY BB ZEARS

M5 M A5 N0 M5 A
HKSO0D  HKH00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00
ZEREE “TINF CEERE SING CEERF TINF

AL TER  TAR  TET TR TR

Provision of

mobile value
added services Corporate and Other Total
REBBHIZERS RERHM @t

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000
“EERE _TIMF -¥RREF _TINF "BERE _TINE
TR TAL TET TAL TET TEL

(Note)

(Frzt)
Segment assets PHEE 7,110 22,117 - 4,828 885 3,735 16,439 4,497 - - 24434  3B5177
Unallocated assets FAARAE 44052 73548 44,052 73548
Total assets gEE 44,052 73648 68,486 108,725
Segment liabilities PHEE 12,831 13,684 209 208 1,416 454 1,978 1,215 - - 16,434 15,561

Unallocated liabilities FAREE
Total liabilities Bak

Other segment information: EftAE54%} :

543 14920 543 14920

543 14920 21,847 30,481

Depreciation ik 315 770 6 110 169 230 876 336 838 2,699 2,204 4,145
Amortisation ] - - - 2,724 - - - - - - - 2,724
Gain on disposal of along (&R
term investment K&K - = - = - - - - (9,160) - (9,160) -
Impairment losses BERBRE
recognised in profit B2
and loss account AEEE - = - 3,198 - - - - - - - 3,198
Provision for doubotful debts R 8#fé 168 - - - 860 - - - - - 1,028 -
Provision for inventories &% 322 - 264 - - - - - - - 586 -
Bad debts written off ~ S2EEHE - = - - - - 280 - - 15 280 15
Capital expenditure ERRY 23 - - - - - 1,144 526 2,580 1,138 3,747 1,664
Note: BT
During the year, in the opinion of the directors, separate disclosure of the FR - EERLIREBEIRERG 2 EEDEME

business segment of provision of mobile value added services is more
appropriate in reflecting the Group’s segment information. Accordingly,
certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the

current year’s presentation.

AR ES RRAEE 2 5 BA RN = R AE
B Bt BTHUBRZEREEEHAE - IR
BARFEZER -
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3. Segment Information (continued) 3. oHWER @
(b) Geographical segments (b) HED I
Over 90% of the Group’s revenue and assets are derived from HARAEEINA =R EEREFE 2
customers and operations based in the PRC and accordingly, no BPRER - UL EE — SRR S E S
further analysis of the Group’s geographical segments is DE 2 B A ST o
disclosed.
4. Turnover and Revenue 4. EEHERWHE
Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after EEFIEC L EEmEATRERBEIRES
allowances for returns and trade discounts, business tax, where i - BN (WER) B2 B2 HE - FIEEE
applicable, and services rendered. All significant intra-group NRBIBMZEARZHE RERERE I o

transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and other revenue is as follows: AEBEXEREMKEZAMTAT ¢
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000
—EERF —EFTEF
FET T
Turnover: B
Sale of goods EmiEE 14,739 49,588
Services rendered TR AR 40,052 35,008
54,791 84,596
Other revenue: H s
Interest income R B A 834 925
Investment income TEBA 507 400
Exchange gain PE 5 e 493 -
Others =i 43 815
1,877 2,140
Total revenue Pl g 56,668 86,736
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Loss from Operating Activities

The Group’s loss from operating activities is arrived at after charging/

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B R &R Kz @)

31 March 2006 —ZEZEAF=FA=+—H

REXBER

AEE 7 EEEBBRLNG, GEA) THI&E

(crediting): BB -
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000
—ZZThHEF —EENE
FBxT FHBT
Cost of inventories sold EHTFERA 11,480 40,949
Cost of services provided TR AR TS A AN 22,669 19,541
Depreciation ree 2,204 4,145
Minimum lease payments under KEEERE
operating leases: HERRK
Land and buildings Tt RAEF 6,996 7,470
Auditors’ remuneration ZEREN B & 550 418
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BT (NEtE
remuneration (note 7)): EEME FT:E7)) -
Wages and salaries TERFHE 20,216 17,028
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 2,990 1,709
Severance payments BEEE € 171 =
23,377 18,737
Amortisation of an intangible asset** mEEEHE = 2,724
Impairment of an intangible asset EREERE - 3,198
Loss on disposal of fixed assets* 5 B & E e e 7 351
Bad debts written off* R BR 88 280 15
Provision for doubtful debts REREAE 1,028 =
Provision for inventories* FERE 586 -
Refund of business tax and RN IR ED
value added tax*** B (233) (942)
Gain on disposal of a long term & R EAR & e
investment (9,160) -
Research and development costs*** Tiff 75 K A B g AN 1,357 201

ok

Hokkk

These items are included in “Other operating expenses” on the face of
the consolidated profit and loss account.

Last year, expenditure on the amortisation of an intangible asset in the
amount of HK$2,724,000 was included in “Cost of services provided”
disclosed above, which was in turn included in “Cost of sales” on the
face of the consolidated profit and loss account.

The current year’s refund of business tax in the amount of HK$227,000
(2004: HK$942,000), represented the financial subsidy granted by the
PRC governmental authority. The subsidy was determined based on the
business tax paid by one of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC and is
offset against the business tax charged during the year.

Research and development costs are included in “Other operating
expenses” on the face of the consolidated profit and loss account and
include staff costs of HK$1,357,000 (2004: HK$201,000) which is also
included in the total staff costs disclosed separately above.

wok

Kkkk

FARBEREPZ [EMEERX | BEZEHE -

BB BRERGRA] B L FE BT E ERHR
2,724,000 7T © 1 FRERBKEIEBEERRIE
SRR Z [HERAIA °

NEEEEF R A227,0008 7T (ZTTMF ¢
942,000%7T) 5P BIBAT & /BT 2 BT ISR - 5228
W IRASBE — R BN B A RIS SR EE
WS F A2 &R

T R A BIEELR S B iR [ a &S —6
o EHREREE TAAN,357,0008 T (Z TP F ¢
201,000/87T) * ZEEIKAE BER LM BITHEEZ
BIRABRENA -
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6. Finance Costs 6. MBER
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’'000
—ZZThHEF e eSS
FET FH&T

Interest on bank overdrafts and bank ARAFAEHEEZRITES

loans wholly repayable within five years MARTTE K F 8 33 -
Interest expense on a finance lease BMEME 2 FERAX 10 19
43 19

7. Directors’ Remuneration 7. EEME

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and Section 161 of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

U T AREEEBARSHARATES LT
BIR BB ARHIZ 16152 HEHBE RS
ZEEM -

2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’'000
—ETEHF —ZEFTF
FHET T
Fees: e
Executive directors HWITES - =
Independent non-executive directors BNIEMITES 180 150
Other emoluments of executive directors:  #iT=%H 2 EMEH< -
Basic salaries, other allowances EARFHE - HM=ZEE R
and benefits in kind EYH = 12,302 11,814
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIE K 152 152
12,634 12,116

During the year, there were four (2004: four) executive directors
receiving individual emoluments of HK$2,898,000 (2004:
HK$2,825,000), HK$4,127,000 (2004: HK$3,788,000), HK$3,188,000
(2004: HK$3,149,000) and HK$2,241,000 (2004: HK$2,204,000),

respectively.
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7. Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 7.

During the year, there were two independent non-executive directors
who received director’s fees of HK$150,000 (2004: HK$150,000) and
HK$30,000 (2004: Nil), respectively. No director’s fees were paid to

the other independent non-executive director (2004: Nil).

The number of directors whose remuneration fell within the following

bands is as follows:

EEHE @

FA - MALE FEHTTE FH BIUER 150,000/
JL(ZZ TP : 150,000 7T) % 30,000/ 7T (=
TTMF : T)2EAESHRE  MB—BY
FRTESHERENESTHS (ZTTHF -
&) -

MERATHEZEEAKWT :

Number of directors

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000

Z —1,000,0007% 7T

1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 7t — 2,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001 7 7T, — 2,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001 7 7T, — 3,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001/ 7€ — 3,500,000/ 7T
3,500,0017% 7T — 4,000,000/ 7T,
4,000,001 7T — 4,500,0007% 7T

EEAH
2005 2004
—®REF  —TITNAF
3 3
1 1
1 1
1 1
- 1
1 _

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed

to waive any remuneration during the year.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors

as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as

compensation for loss of office.

FRALETLEERRXFABRETAME 2
2k

FA - ARELEAESE IR EREN
AR E 7 SRR 2 B {E -
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Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included four (2004:
four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 7
above. Details of the remuneration of remaining one (2004: one) non-

director, highest paid employee are set out below:

hfuRESHFMES

N B RS SIE (B ENE -
PO B - EHSHERR LT o B —
f1 (CETME - —f0) FEERSHMER 2 B
SHERIIMT -

2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000
—EERHE —ZTTNF
FE&xT T

Basic salaries, other allowances EARE S - HihEah
and benefits in kind REYFH = 2,140 1,550
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIE R 27 27
2,167 1,577

The remuneration of the one non-director, highest paid employee for
the year ended 31 March 2005 fell within the HK$2,000,001 to
HK$2,500,000 band.

Tax

RBE-_TTAF=A=1+—HILFE  ZMk
EESRHMES ZME N $2,000,0018TE
2,500,000/& 7T 2 A °

BiR

2005 2004

HK$’000 HK$’000

—EZTEF —ETPYF

FBxT FH&T

Current year provision: NEERE

Hong Kong B - -
Elsewhere HE b= 41 1,208
41 1,208

Hong Kong profits tax refunded REFBFEH (503) -
PRC tax refunded R [E AR BRI (558) -
Overprovision in prior years FEREEE (286) (286)
Underprovision in prior years FEBETR 6 =
Tax charge/(written back) for the year AEEZRHELH  (E#) (1,300) 922

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Group did not
generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year
(2004: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices

in respect thereof.
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31 March 2006 —ZEZEAF=FA=+—H

Tax (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax charge/(credit) applicable to loss before tax
using the statutory tax rates for the countries in which the Company

and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective

BiIE ()

AEBAEENERARA R R RENBRARME
BROEEREAE 2 HBRRAARRERB X
AEZBIERS, (ER) 2 HERMT

tax rates is as follows:

2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000
—EERE —ZETF
FERT FHET
Accounting loss before tax BRI BI R EE (33,109) (40,198)
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate Tﬁ%}%)iiﬁr 17 6%t B 2 iR
of 17.5% (2004: 17.5%) (ZZEWNE : 17.5%) (3,181) (6,283)
Tax at the Mainland China statutory 2R B K P A FE A R 88 % T & 2 i 1E
tax rate of 33% (2004: 33%) (ZZ=ZMF : 33%) (4,926) (1,418)
Lower applicable tax rate enjoyed by AEEZRzREEATRE
the Group 2,681 773
Estimated tax effect of net expenses A TEE T FE 23R T i K1) 5 AT~ AT 10k
that are not deductible in determining F S F 8 2 (AR RS
taxable profit e 3,539 6,682
Estimated tax losses utilised from A BA AR 2 EE
previous periods THIEEE - (588)
Estimated tax losses not recognised RERER 2 BT HHIEEE 1,928 2,042
Hong Kong profits tax refunded RO BHBFEH (503) -
PRC tax refunded R [E AR EFIE (558) =
Adjustment in respect of current tax of BT EEBTHEEL
previous periods 2R (280) (286)
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s EAREBERREGTEZ
effective rate BiIER S (HE) (1,300) 922

A Group’s subsidiary operating in the PRC is adjudicated as a “& %7
R AT %7 by the PRC governmental authority. In accordance with a
notice issued by the PRC governmental authority on 29 December
20083, the subsidiary is entitled to a subvention on 7% of its assessable
profits for the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2004 when
all attaching conditions are complied with. During the year, the PRC
governmental authority has confirmed the fulfilment of the attaching
conditions by the subsidiary for the period from 1 January 2003 to 31
December 2003 and the subsidiary received a total subvention of
approximately HK$558,000.

There was no unprovided deferred tax in respect of the year and at
the balance sheet date (2004: Nil).

INERE —RATE AR B AT 7 T A IR B BT 4
MR AR R o BIEPEBATHER
—TT=F+-A-THhBHLZEA - Wk
NEBERKFTB TS 2 & - EERERS-ZT
—F—A—HE-TTWMF+-_A=+—HIH
2 FERR B ) 2 7% RS o R - REIERATIE
HEERZMBARR B2 =F—A—H%F_
TT=F+= A=+ AHRERHNE ZI&HF
Z B A R B UER S £ 47558,0007% 7T 2 AL ©

H
Wt

EERAEHE B R B R ERE (=
TEME ) o
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31 March 2005 —ZFZEhF=A=+—H

10. Net Loss from Ordinary Activities Attributable to 10.

Shareholders

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to shareholders for
the year ended 31 March 2005 dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company was HK$31,657,000 (2004: HK$39,235,000).

11. Loss per Share 11.

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share for the two years
ended 31 March 2005 is based on the following data:

IRERIEM B R R ERFR

FARRRAERERARRIECEE_TTRF=
A=1+—BIFERREMLBSEKERFES
31,657,000/ 70 (ZZ =4 : 39,285,000/87T) °

BREE

BE_ZZERF=-A=1+—HIMAFEZEZRK
EARAREERE - TR THIEIEE ¢

2005 2004

HK$’°000 HK$’000

—EZTEF —ETPYF

FET AT

Loss: 518
Net loss attributable to shareholders, =] 75\ TESREAREEEE Y
used in the basic and diluted &% 2R pE A B 18 F RE

loss per share calculations (31,809) (41,120)

Shares: &t

Weighted average number of shares RERNARGTESREREE
in issue during the year used in ZE%TTJM
basic loss per share calculation IniE 15 A% £

Weighted average number of shares BRAZKRESRAER
assumed issued at no consideration FREARITEZ
on deemed exercise of all share BRERIETEZ
options outstanding during the year A& {7 g 15 ik

Weighted average number of shares ARt ESREEEE 2
used in diluted loss per share & 7 hnge 35 A% £k
calculation

511,250,000 511,250,000

- 21,853

511,250,000 511,271,853

A diluted loss per share amount for the year ended 31 March 2005
has not been disclosed, as the share options outstanding had an anti-

dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B R &R Kz @)

31 March 2006 —ZEZEAF=FA=+—H

12. Fixed Assets 12. BIEEE
Group
RE
Office and
Leasehold computer
building in equipment,
Mainland Leasehold furniture Motor
China improvements  and fixtures vehicles Total
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
MAEEEH
EHRE R HE  RE- KM
ZHEEF Mg - HEETEHE AE @t
FHT THBT THEIT T FHT
Cost: BAE
At beginning of year F4 - 1,643 24,734 1,730 28,107
Additions NE 1,385 202 1,860 300 3,747
Disposals HE - (11) (922) - (933)
Exchange realignment b 2 - 10 40 8 58
At 31 March 2005 RZETREF
=A=+—H 1,385 1,844 25,712 2,038 30,979
Accumulated depreciation ZEMER
and impairment: A
At beginning of year F4 - 1,385 22,514 1,336 25,235
Provided during the year FRRE 3 224 1,743 234 2,204
Disposals HE - 1) (910) - (921)
Exchange realignment BEE 5 B - 10 28 8 46
At 31 March 2005 RZZEEREF
=A=+—H 3 1,608 28,816 1,578 26,564
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 March 2005 RZETREF
=A=+—H 1,382 236 2,337 460 4,415
At 31 March 2004 RZZTZME
=A=+—H - 258 2,220 394 2,872
The Group’s leasehold building situated in Mainland China is held under AEFEBGATREAM Y HEEFHEERBHEERS
long term lease. 7=
The net book value of the Group’s fixed assets held under a finance AEERBERENSRACEEEE 2 REF
lease included in the total amount of motor vehicles at 31 March 2005, B ERER-ZETERAF=A=+—HRENE
amounted to approximately HK$160,000 (2004: HK$279,000). 160,000 7T (ZZZ U4 : 279,000 7T) 29
o

EERBERERAT —2TnesR 6D
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31 March 2005 —ZFZEhF=A=+—H

13. Intangible Asset 13. BFEE
Group
rEE
HK$’000
FET
Cost: BKANE :
At beginning of year F4) 45,889
Write-off during the year TR EE IR 34 (45,889)
At 31 March 2005 R-ZETRF=A=+—H
Accumulated amortisation and impairment: ~ 25H#$4 & EE ¢
At beginning of year F9) 45,889
Write-off during the year R F RS (45,889)
At 31 March 2005 R=ZTRE=A=+—A B
Net book value: BRENFE
At 31 March 2005 R-ZETRF=A=+—H -
At 31 March 2004 RZZEENFE=ZA=1+—H -
14. Deposits and Club Debentures 14. FTEREFRES
Group
rEE
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000
—gREE  —TINA
FET FAT
Rental deposits HAET® 716 1,149
Deposits for purchases of fixed assets BEEEEER S - 1,335
Club debentures SHES 732 420
1,448 2,904
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31 March 2006 —ZEZEAF=FA=+—H

15. Long Term Investment 15. REBARE
Group
AEE
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000
—gERE  —TINA
FET FHTT
Unlisted equity investment, at cost I EMIRAIRE 2 AR - 49,920
Provision for impairment ERE - (49,920)

16.

Last year, the unlisted equity investment represented the Group’s 16%
equity interest in a Sino-foreign jointly-controlled entity in the PRC (the
“Investment”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group did not have
any significant influence over the financial and operating policies of
the Investment and accordingly, it had been carried at cost less any

impairment losses.

The Investment was disposed of with a consideration of HK$9,160,000

resulting in a gain of HK$9,160,000 in current year (note 23).

Negative Goodwill

As detailed in note 2 to the financial statements, on the adoption of
SSAP 30 in 2001, the Group applied the transitional provision of SSAP
30 that permitted negative goodwill in respect of acquisition of
subsidiaries prior to the adoption of the SSAP, to remain eliminated

against consolidated reserves.

The amount of the negative goodwill remaining in consolidated reserves
as at 31 March 2005, arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior
to the adoption of SSAP 30 was HK$27,245,000 (2004:
HK$27,245,000).

16.

EF  FEMBRAREREAEEN T B —EF I
HFEH AR 2 16%M A ([ZIKE]) - EF
R AREHZRE M B REEBRL TR
BEFAEATE @ Fit - ZIRE SRR ARIER
B R R IR

FR - ZIREDLA9,160,0008 TREHE © 15
W %59,160,000% 7T (Ff5E23) °

aHE

I SRR M R 2P RE AL - AR —TF —FIRM
S EBEREI0M - ARERASHELLEL
FEI05R BB - ZREAFTFRRERZES
BRI R KRB B AR EL 2 B MBI
B R e o

ANEE B AN 5 B 75 2E R 55 3057 A1 e 0 B /R
ARFEEZ BEER NRBE_SZRF=A=
+T—BZiFaRED - BEER27,245,0008 7T (=
TN : 27,245,000/ 7T) °
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31 March 2005 —ZFZEhF=A=+—H

17. Interests in Subsidiaries

17. RMB ARz

Company
P NN

2005 2004

HK$’000 HK$’000

—EETHF —ZTTNF

FET T

Unlisted shares, at cost JE ETRRD 2 AR 27,445 27,445
Due from subsidiaries FEUL B B A Al ZRIE 359,078 360,159
386,523 387,604
Provision (339,142) (809,142)
47,381 78,462

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

have no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

FE B /B8 R B SRR T KR - B R EE

H o

TEWMBRRZFBET :

Nominal

Place of value of Percentage of

incorporation/ paid-up/ equity interest

establishment and registered attributable to

operations share capital the Company

Ry =YV RRQ B AL
Company MK = R A fE Principal activities
AF] EE B RAEE BOL FEEWR
Prosten (BVI) Limited British Virgin US$21,025 100 Investment holding
Islands 21,0253 7T AR

KBRS
Prosten Technology Co. Hong Kong Ordinary 100 Trading of computer
Limited BE HK$1,000,000 equipment, software
REREBRAR] =Rl development, system
1,000,000/ 7T integration and system
development
consulting
BEEBHRE - M
i ZGEa
ES il ik i
Prolink Technology Hong Kong Ordinary 100 Investment holding
Limited e HK$5 B
5%7T

Worldly Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 Investment holding
BB HK$10,000 and provision of
LB consultancy services
10,000/ 7T BB PR B bR v s AR 7S

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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17. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B R &R Kz @)

31 March 2006 —ZEZEAF=FA=+—H

17. REE LRz ()

Nominal

Place of value of Percentage of

incorporation/ paid-up/ equity interest

establishment and registered attributable to

operations share capital the Company

AL, =5V PN
Company 253 o IR A 2 Principal activities
AT EIE U B RATEE Bk FEXK
Prosten Technology (Shanghai) PRC US$3,500,000 100 Trading of computer
Company Limited A 3,500,000 7T equipment, software
REEBRBARE development, system
(&) BRA integration, system
development
consulting and provision
of mobile value added
services
BEEBMRME - M

e~ ZBEE -
RS R R
B E IR E RS
Unison Networking Services PRC US$1,500,000 100 Provision of network
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. a3 1,500,000% 7T engineering,
s MR R RS maintenance,
(E8) BRAR] management,
assessment services
and related e-business
consulting services
REER TR HE

EIP - AE RS K AR
BE 1 B A RS

Other than Prosten (BVI) Limited, all other subsidiaries are indirectly

held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

¥xProsten (BVI) Limitedsh - BT E KB A 715
HARRIBERS -

EERR FRAVAARZHBARE
REFZEEIBRAEEEEFE S
Do BERRE  FILEMKER R HIEH
BARILE °

IFHM
A X
o
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31 March 2005 —ZFZEhF=A=+—H

18. Inventories

18.

EE

Group
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000
—ETHF —ZTpEF
FET FET
Work in progress eS8 166 2,200
Finished goods LUAK 3,010 7,879
3,176 10,079

No inventories were stated at net realisable value as at 31 March 2005
and 2004.

19. Trade Receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have credit terms pursuant to the
provisions of the relevant contracts, are recognised and carried at
original invoice amount, and an estimate for doubtful debts is made
and deducted when collection of the full amount is no longer probable.

Bad debts are written off as incurred.

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the balance

sheet date, net of provisions, is as follows:

19.

FE W B

REEBANZIRTE  BUREX—RHEEE
H - RUCRRIZRIGER SR T AR LI -
WHEDA RO E 2SR EHRARMGE - X
T LAFIRR o SEARRIMN S AR IEH o

RNEBRAEE B 2 IR GNBREER) 2 BRiR
DITER -

Group

A%
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000
—EERF ZETPF
FEx T
0 -90 days 0£90H 11,005 19,470
91 — 180 days 91£180H 4,449 6
181 — 365 days 181£365H 1,248 1,242
Over 365 days #RiB365H 481 552
17,183 21,270
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20. Short Term Investments 20. EHKRE
Group
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000
—ZTRF ZETF
FET FHAT
Investment funds outside Hong Kong, BEAINZIRERES
at fair value ZNFEE 1,560 8,544
21. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Deposits 21. e RBSEENMURBEREN
Group Company
r5E NG|
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
“ZE2IF —TTME “ZTIHF —TTME
TER THL TER FET
Cash and bank balances BeRIBTER 4,583 14,449 56 49
Time deposits placed RIS EE
at financial institutions ZEHER 29,375 36,507 - -
Other liquid funds HihiRsEe - 4,973 - -
33,958 55,929 56 49
Less: Pledged deposits B RITEEZ
for banking facilities BEAEFH
(note 25) (KizE25) (444) (3,363) - -
33,514 52,566 56 49

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to approximately
HK$2,541,000 (2004: HK$8,550,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under the PRC Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to

conduct foreign exchange business.

Other liquid funds included investments in money market instruments

placed at financial institutions.

REER @ AEENUARBEE RS RIBITEHE
#RAVE2,641,000/8 7T (ZTZEMF : 8,650,000/
TT) c ARBTAIEEERAHMER - AWiE
R R B SNGE B 5 R A5 EE - S IE RIS EERE
B« REBEEFBEITINEER 2 RAIRITH
ARBHBREME

EBHESBRFRUBRECEEHETA

\
/!

X5
M
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22.

Trade Payables

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the balance

sheet date is as follows:

22. FEMRRFR

AEBNEE R ZBNRRZREITAT

Group

AEE
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000
—EERF T F
FERT AT
0 - 90 days 0Z90H 2,082 3,113
91 — 180 days 91£180H 153 18
181 — 365 days 181£365H 234 314
Over 365 days HBiE365H 10,397 10,463
12,866 13,908

23.

Accrued Liabilities, Deposits Received and Other Payables

The accrued liabilities, deposits received and other payables of the
Group at 31 March 2004 included a deposit in the amount of
HK$9,160,000 received from an independent third party (the
“Purchaser”) as consideration for the acquisition of an investment held
by the Group (note 15). During the prior year, the Group was claiming
payment for certain charges (the “Claim”), including late payment
interest and certain PRC tax levies, from the Purchaser. Consequently,
the Group did not proceed to transfer the legal title of the Investment
(the “Title Transfer”) and the amounts received were classified as

deposits received as at 31 March 2004.

The Group ceased to pursue the Claim against the Purchaser and has
written to the Purchaser to request for the Title Transfer to be actioned.
As confirmed by the Group’s PRC lawyer, the Title Transfer is now
subject to the Purchaser to effect the statutory procedures with the
related PRC government authorities required by the PRC Law.
Accordingly, the above deposits were recognised as proceeds on

disposal of a long term investment in current year.
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24.

Finance Lease Payables

The Group leases a motor vehicle. The lease is classified as a finance

lease and has remaining lease terms of approximately one year.

At 31 March 2005, the total future minimum lease payments under

the finance lease and their present values were as follows:

24.

BMEHERMGFR

AEEHE-—WE ZEEDNRRAREMR
o BRTZFHOR—F -

RZZZRF=A=+—H REMEHEZR
REEHENRERRERELT

Present value of Present value of
Minimum lease Minimum lease minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments payments payments
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
REHE mEHE RikHEE HEHE
R NEA NRZEE NRZHRE
—ETEF —TTMEF i - —ZTME
THER FHT FET THT
Amounts payable: FEF R :
Within one year —FR 95 143 93 133
In the second year F-F - 95 - 93
Total minimum finance wEFEEE
lease payments B 95 238 93 226
Future finance charges ARBEE R (2) (12)
Total net finance lease payables MEMREREM
HIER S 93 226
Portion classified as BEARY
current liabilities &5 (93) (133)
Non-current portion JERNER S 1R - 93
25. Banking Facilities 25. RITIEE

As at 31 March 2005, the Group’s banking facilities were secured by
bank deposits in the aggregate amount of HK$444,000 (2004:
HK$3,363,000) and corporate guarantees to the extent of
HK$31,199,000 (2004: HK$32,569,000) executed by the Company

and certain subsidiaries of the Company.

At 31 March 2005, the banking facilities utilised by the Group amounted
to approximately HK$444,000 (2004: HK$3,349,000).

REAR-_TTRE=A=+—HZRTEED
LA %8 5 A444,000/ 7T (Z T T4 : 3,363,000
AIT) 2 RITEREE R R BAA R EEETH
B A Rl{EH A Al#E{R31,199,0007% 7T (Z =W
F : 32,569,000/ 7T) B EUS °

RZZZERF=RA=1+—H AEEEHHAZR

I E#)7R3444,0007 7T (ZFZMMEF : 3,349,000
BT °
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26. Deferred Tax

The Group has estimated deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$6,589,000 (2004: HK$4,830,000) calculated on tax losses arising
in Hong Kong that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some

time.

26.

EERB R

AEE 7 EEHEEREE E 476,589,000 7T (=
T : 4,830,00077T) @ TIARBBEEZ
TIEEERETE - BB EIE T AR R 1
HERISEIB Y AR B& 2 ERBUEF - ARNZSE
MIB AR ESESEIE— B - Bt ERZE
EERERRLETIBEE -

27. Share Capital 27. RA&
Shares ;87
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’'000
—ETHF —ETENE
FET FHBT
Authorised: SEERRA
2,500,000,000 shares of 2,500,000,0000% & i%
HK$0.10 each EE0.10/8 7T 2 & 1%
250,000 250,000
Issued and fully paid: BT REERA
511,250,000 shares of 511,250,000% Z A% FI1E0.1075 7T
HK$0.10 each &) 51,125 51,125
Share options B RE

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the share options
granted under the schemes are included in note 28 to the financial

statements.
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28. Share Option Schemes

The Company'’s share option scheme which was adopted on 7 March
2000 (the “Old Scheme”) was terminated and replaced by a new share
option scheme approved by the shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 9 April 2002 (the “New
Scheme”). The options granted under the Old Scheme remain

exercisable within their respective exercise periods.

A summary of the Old Scheme and the New Scheme is set out below:

(@) Old Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants include the Company’s directors and employees of
the Group. Under the Old Scheme, the board was authorised, at
its absolute discretion, to grant options to the Company’s directors
and employees of the Group, to take up options to subscribe for
ordinary shares of the Company. The Old Scheme became
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on the listing of
the Company’s shares on the Growth Enterprises Market (the
“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Exchange”) on 28 March 2000.

28.

fBIRRER &

R-ZTTEF= At ARMZ AR R ERE S
(B8N EN_FZE_FMOANARITZAR
BIRCRAFRIR & L AR 1E Ko PARSCR L/ 2 T RB ACAR
sHE ([Frat 1) B o RIBER B 2 B RtE
DAIR BB 21T AT -

EH BB A2 HERIIMT -

(a) EsrEl
RATRE —EERETE - BEESERE
BV AR E 2 RINEEEL BRI Z 5 EIE2
HE - AEBSRERERATESTRASE
B8 - RIFETEIG  EEGREESD
RRERAEAAR R EERAEEESFE
R - UEMBRERBADA 2 LB
g o B EINARRIRMNN ZZEZTZTF =R
—+HN\BEBEHERZHARAR ([#32
FiTl) BIZEMR (TRIZEMR]) ETRRSFRSAAERR - &
HA10%F o
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28. Share Option Schemes (continued)

(b) New Scheme

The New Scheme became effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 23 April 2002. Under the New Scheme, the
directors may, at their sole discretion, grant to any eligible
participants options to subscribe for ordinary shares of the
Company at the higher of (i) the closing price of shares of the
Company on the GEM as stated in the Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of the offer of grant; or (i) the average closing
price of the shares of the Company on the GEM as stated in the
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the share. The offer of a grant of options may be
accepted within 21 days from the date of the offer. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of
an option. The exercise period of the options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences after a certain
vesting period and ends in any event not later than 10 years from
the date of the offer on which the offer for grant of the option is

made, subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

The maximum number of securities to be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the New Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
relevant class of securities of the Company in issue from time to

time.

The total number of shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the New Scheme
is an amount equivalent to 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of the extraordinary general meeting held on
9 April 2002.
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28. Share Option Schemes (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the Old Scheme

during the year:

28. BREEETE ®)

FREABA R ARETE ZBIRENT :

Number of share options Price of Company’s shares***
EREHE Date of Exercise period  Exercise price FRARAER
At 1 April Lapsed At 31 March share options of share options of share options At re-grant At exercise
Name or category 2004 during 2005 re-granted * re-granted  re-granted™  date of options date of options
of participant RZZEME the year RZEZRE B ERERE  ERERE RERE RERE
SREE LSRR mA-A FREH =R=t-R ERRH ZiTEHR TR ERAN ik A%
HKS HKS HKS
Directors
g=
Mr. Yip Seng Mun 6,000,000 - 6,000,000 22 August 2001 22 August 2001 to 040 040 NA
EERAL “EE-E\f=1H 21 August 2011 NER
“E2-E)\A-t2R%
Z2—EN\A=1-H
Mr. Yip Heon Ping 6,300,000 - 6,300,000 22 August 2001 22 August 2001 to 040 040 NA
ERTnk Z5F-E\A=1ZH 21 August 2011 TR
“EREN\AZTZRE
ZE——EN\A=1-H
Mr. Yip Heon Wai 5,300,000 - 5,300,000 22 August 2001 22 August 2001 to 040 040 N/A
Emirs Z55-£/\A=TZH 21 August 2011 NER
ZER-E/\AZtZRE
Z5—EN\A=1-H
Mr. Yip Heon Keung 5,300,000 - 5,300,000 22 August 2001 22 August 2001 to 040 040 NA
EmRst “EE-E\f=1H 21 August 2011 NER
“E2-E)\A-TZR%
Z2—EN\A=1-A
22,900,000 - 22,900,000
Other employees
Eftes
In aggregate 4,795,000 (210,000) 4,585,000 22 August 2001 22 August 2001 to 040 040 NA
=) Z55-£/\A=TZH 21 August 2011 NER
22-F\AZTZAZ%
F——EN\A=t-A
27,695,000 (210,000) 27,485,000
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31 March 2005 —ZFZEhF=A=+—H

28. Share Option Schemes (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the New Scheme

during the year:

28. EBREEETE (®)

FRFET A RETE 2 BIRAENAT

Number of share options Price of Company’s shares***
EREHE Date of Exercise period  Exercise price ARARAER™
At 1 April Lapsed At 31 March share options of share options of share options At grant At exercise
Name or category 2004 during 2005 granted * granted granted™  date of options date of options
of participant RZZEME the year R-ZE1% EhE REERE  RHBRE RERE RERE
SREE 2T B mA-A ER&N =A=t-H RHAH * ZTEHR LA™ RHiAH ik A%
HKS HKS HKS
AT AT AT
Director
B2
Mr. Au Shing Kiwok 500,000 - 500,000 22 May 2002 22 May 2002 o 026 0.26 N/A
BAELE S = 21 May 2012 NER
“E2-FTIACToRE
Z2-ZERAZT-A
Other employees
EftiER
In aggregate 11,380,000 (9,890,000) 1,490,000 22 May 2002 22 May 2002 o 026 0.26 NA
it 5 oy = 21 May 2012 TEE
“E2-FTIACToRE
Z2-ZERAZT-A
In aggregate 3,000,000 (3,000,000) - 22 May 2002 1 February 2004 o 026 0.26 NA
Aif < 5y = 31 January 2005 el
“ZENE-R-AZ
ZEERE-A=1-H
In aggregate 5,210,000 (120,000) 5,090,000 26 March 2004 26 March 2004 to 010 010 NA
CEl “FEMEZF-tiA 25 March 2014 TR
ZTEME-ACTAAE
“F-RE=A-1HA
Others
Eft
In aggregate 1,200,000 - 1,200,000 26 March 2004 26 March 2004 to 010 010 NA
CEl “FEMEZR-tiA 25 March 2014 TR
“EEME=ATRAR
Z3-ME=A-THA
21,290,000 (13,010,000 8,280,000
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B R &R Kz @)

31 March 2006 —ZEZEAF=FA=+—H

28.

29.

Share Option Schemes (continued)

The time of acceptance of the share options was within 21 days from the
options offer date. The share options granted are subject to certain vesting
period and vary for each category of participant as specified under the

respective share option schemes.

ok

The exercise price of the share options was subject to adjustment in the
case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s

share capital.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date of the grant
of the share options was the Exchange’s closing price on the trading day

on the date of the grant of the share options.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 27,485,000 and
8,280,000 share options outstanding under the Old Scheme and the
New Scheme, respectively. The exercise in full of these options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 35,765,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company, additional
share capital of HK$3,576,500, and share premium of HK$8,563,900,

respectively, before related share issue expenses.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, a total of 50,000 share options
lapsed under the Old Scheme, following the resignation of certain

employees of the Group.

Share options granted under the Old Scheme and the New Scheme
do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at

shareholders’ meetings.

Reserves

Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement

of changes in equity of the financial statements.

Pursuant to the PRC laws and regulations, a portion of the profits of
the Group’s subsidiaries which are registered in the PRC has been
transferred to the statutory reserve fund which are restricted as to

use.

28.

29.

B & (@

Y BREzEAERSEBREENRE1RA -
RIBA BB 8 2 RE - PriR 2 BBAE R
EAR2EZERNTME TR EBHARR -

o R 1T AR IR SR AL BT A R
RSB T T -

o REBEER D BT EE 2 AR R BB T B A
BREE AR5 AEBR M2 WTE -

REEB - BIBEEIRFE - ARAIHRIE
27,485,00017 }.8,280,00017 (5 K 1718 2 FEALAE ©
REAR A2 BRITEARNRHE - BEITEMRITE
2 BRI G B BN B RESNEE 1735, 765,000/% A4

AA)Z LR RIS R INRZA3,576,500/ 7T + I
B (RKRTHBERGETHAZ AN RO EE
8,563,900/ T °

REE R BRIBEASRAEEE T(IEEB

E18 R 2 FE R FE 2 8 550,00017 ©

RIBEF &I N8I 2 B T T
AR B IR ERAE EIRFE 2R -

i

rEE

REERNFARBEFEZ FHESBREZHE
RINRABERR IR ERBEHRA -

BB BUEGIRARE - AKE R E M2 HE
RAZEENEEREXERBESD - AKX
BZRETIARS
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31 March 2005 —ZFZEhF=A=+—H

29. Reserves (continued) 29. f##E (@
Company
P N/NE|
Share
premium Accumulated
account losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BR 43 % B iR ZEER st
FAIT FATT FHTT
At 1 April 2003 RZEZT=FMA—H 339,275 (273,341) 65,934
Net loss for the year FREEFE - (39,235) (39,235)
At 31 March 2004 and 1 April 2004 RK=-ZZTNF=F=+—H
R=ZZTMEMNA—H 339,275 (312,576) 26,699
Net loss for the year FREEFE - (31,657) (31,657)
At 31 March 2005 RZEERF=A=+—H 339,275 (344,233) (4,958)

(@)

(b)

The share premium account of the Company includes (i) shares
issued at premium; and (ii) the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the Company issued in exchange for the
issued share capital of the subsidiaries and the value of the
underlying net assets of the subsidiaries at the date they were
acquired by the Company at the time of the Group reorganisation
in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares in 2000.
Under the Companies Law (2001 Revision) of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due
in the ordinary course of business. The share premium account

may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

The Company’s reserves available for the distribution comprise
the share premium account after the deduction of accumulated
losses. At 31 March 2005, in the opinion of the directors, the
Company had no reserve available for distribution to shareholders
(2004: reserve of HK$26,699,000 available for distribution, subject

to the restrictions stated in note 29(a) above).
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7 RARER_ZEETFETAEEE
AAEBAR DB LR BB B AR
ZEBITRAMBETZ AR 2 HER
MBRARARARARMKE B 2 HEEEF
EMEZEZRE - REFEHBEARE(CE
T—FEFAN)  BiaERAIHIIKTA
RAEIZIRER - EREBEEHEDIRIRE 2 A
BRARBUARER B R EBRETERDIH
RHEREEIR o IR BRRIN AT ABR ALK
ZITRETDIR °

A RIS IR 2 B R D S E R AR
REHEBEEK  R-_EERFE=A=1+—
B - EERARARWERETHS R TR
R(ZZZWF : A RZHEER
26,699,000/ 7T * AR = 3CFfiEH29(a) At
ZREIRR) ©



Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B R &R Kz @)

31 March 2006 —ZEZEAF=FA=+—H

30. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 30.

Major non-cash transactions
()  Fixed assets additions for HK$1,335,000 in current year were
prepaid and included in “Deposits and club debentures” in last

year (note 14).

(i)  Deposits of HK$9,160,000 was received and included in “Accrued
liabilities, deposits received and other payables” in last year (note
23). During the year, this balance was recognised as the proceed

on disposal of a long term investment (note 15).

31. Operating Lease Arrangements 31.

The Group leases certain of its office properties and motor vehicles
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are

negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years.

At 31 March 2005, the Group had total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

FeRERERMEE

FEFRERS

() RERRERETEEEZFHIHE1,335,0008 7T
EREFAMNRBEEFISREMERIA
(Hi3E14) °

iy =& SUWHET£9,160,000/ 7T K B HER
[EtaE SRS REMEMNZE] R
(FT3E23) -« FA - WIBAREERARLER
HAIR & 2 FfS 2E (MisE15) o

REHERH

AEBREEERERHBELE THAZYE
RoAE - @EBEEMYE AERA—FES
FRE -

KR-FTRF=A=+—B - AEBRETTH
SHAS S G RIS fE i 2 R R AR E R ARz 0
T

Group
IRE
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’'000
= A —ETNF
FER FAT
Land and buildings: THE RIEF ¢
Within one year —FR 4,224 5,262
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_ZERF (BREERMF) 1,473 3,973
5,697 9,235
Motor vehicles: E
Within one year —FR 333 316
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_ZERF (BEERME) 45 236
378 552
6,075 9,787

The Company did not have any significant commitment under non-

cancellable operating leases at the balance sheet date (2004: Nil).

REER - AABWEEA R HESEHE 2
EREAECEZTNF : &) -
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31 March 2005 —ZFZEhF=A=+—H

32. Commitments

Capital commitments contracted for

32. &g

BT ONFEIRFT N2 B A AIE

Group
RE
2005 2004
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
= A5 —ETNF
FET FHET
Investment in a subsidiary in the PRC HER—EF BB AT 3,900 3,877

The Company had no significant commitment at the balance sheet
date (2004 Nil).

33. Contingent Liabilities and Pending Litigation

0)

(i

The Company has given corporate guarantees in favour of certain
banks to the extent of HK$31,199,000 (2004: HK$32,569,000)
in respect of banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of

the Company.

As at 31 March 2005, the banking facilities granted to the
subsidiaries subject to these guarantees given to the banks by
the Company were utilised to the extent of approximately
HK$444,000 (2004: HK$3,349,000).

During the year, certain allegations were made against the
Company in the United States of America (“U.S.A.”) by Grace &
Digital Information Technology Co., Ltd. (“GDIT”), a PRC
company, concerning Fidelity Information Services, Inc. (“FIS”), a
U.S.A. company and a customer of the Group (the “Allegation”).
GDIT alleges that the Company interfered with a contract (the
“Contract”) between GDIT and Alltel Information Services, Inc.
(“AIS”), a U.S.A. company now known as FIS. GDIT alleges that
under this Contract, it was to act as FIS’s representative in
procuring contracts with a bank in the PRC for FIS’s banking

software.

In the Allegation, GDIT seeks compensatory damages in excess
of US$59 million against the Company. GDIT also seeks
unspecified punitive damages against the Company and another

defendant.
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33. HAKRBRERERFR

(i

ANAFFIR T AR EE THEB AR 2R TR
AimRE THRITH M AEUES31,199,0007 7T
(ZZZ P : 32,569,000/ 7T) 2 A Al
R o

R-ZTZRF=A=1+—8 ' BERAAM
RITIREE 2 BRMIR T HB AT Z RITRE
EEMA444,0008 L (ZEZTWMF -
3,349,000/ 7T) °

FR - —MPFBEAAGrace & Digital
Information Technology Co., Ltd. ([GDIT])
L — 3B A &]Fidelity Information Services,
Inc. ([FIS)RAKE —R2EFEXFEAR
([ZEE]) mARBREE THEME ([ZiE
) o GDITHEBA R AT EGDIT KAlltel
Information Services, Inc. ([AIS]) 2 —1H&
A (Tzak])  ASR—MEBRRR - HiE
AFIS - GDITH#TH » IRIFZA K - GDITRE
FISFAFISZ IRITE A — M+ BRI TS &
7 e

TERZIERETF » GDITE KA QAL (HEER K
#159,000,000% 7T ° GDITINE KA A 7 K&
SR EAEL FEIEERE EREE -
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33. Contingent Liabilities and Pending Litigation (continued)

(i)

(continued)

The Company'’s lawyer confirmed that the Company plans to file
a motion to quash service of GDIT’s complaint on the grounds
that California courts have no jurisdiction over the Company and
in the event the motion to quash the complaint is denied, the
Company intends to vigorously defend this matter. The Company’s
directors, after taking legal advice, are of the opinion that no
evidence to support the allegations has been forthcoming and at
this stage it is too early to predict the outcome of this case or to
estimate losses, if any. Accordingly, a provision in respect of the

Allegation is not considered necessary at this stage.

34. Connected and Related Party Transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in these

financial statements, the Group had the following material transactions

33. HARBRERERFDR @

(i)

(&)

RARRENER - AR EIFHEIZREEHGDIT
ZHR - BHEIMNERSRNRRLTEE
BIEEERE - MBEBPRZERER AR
AAER LA EHERGR - ARARES
EREVEEB AR RBBMHAERIEX
FrEmE - R BRIEAIL RR I 2 BRI
SHRKX @A) F2HE o Bt - RERALA
FEERIELRE -

4. BEREHREALRS

Bz E M ISR E M) st il 2 X 5 K 48k
Sh - AEBRFAB THRBEALZEAR

with related parties during the year: 2 :
2005 2004
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B sE —EEREF —ETF
FEx F&TT
Rental expenses paid BENEEAX 0} 767 643
Handling services fee paid BATEE RS E R (i) 842 565
Rental expenses paid EREERAX (i 414 360
Purchase of a motor vehicle BEAE (iv 300 =

(i)

The rentals were paid in respect of the Group’s leased motor
vehicles to a related company, of which a shareholder of the
related company is the father-in-law of Mr. Yip Heon Ping, a
director of the Company. The directors of the Company have
confirmed that the monthly rentals were calculated by reference

to the then prevailing open market rental value.

Handling services fee paid represented the fee charged on
services provided by a related company in handling the Group’s
mobile value added services, of which shareholders of the related
company are the mother-in-law and sister-in-law of Mr. Yip Heon
Ping, a director of the Company. The fee was charged according

to the terms of an agreement dated 20 August 2003.

(i)

BRAES IR AEE R —HEELREER
B ZEEAR —BBRIIAARE
FERTEEZER - RRAREFSDHER
ART2RERZ AFTERE °

ENEERSEE R —HEER R REARE
ERENLERGAKEIRC ER - ZEEAF
ZMBRRIIA R R EEER T EEZINES
kT - ERABRIRBERHR-ST=F
NAZ+ B2 2 fRRURER
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34. Connected and Related Party Transactions (continued)

)

The rentals were paid in respect of the Group’s leased staff quarter
situated in Hong Kong to Mr. Yip Heon Wai, a director of the
Company, and Ms. Chan Fu Kuen, Gladys, the spouse of Mr. Yip
Heon Wai. The directors of the Company have confirmed that
the monthly rental was calculated by reference to the then

prevailing open market rental value.

A motor vehicle was purchased by the Group from a related
company of which shareholders of the related company are Mr.
Yip Heon Wai and Mr. Yip Heon Keung, the directors of the
Company. The directors of the Company have confirmed that
the purchase price was made by reference to the then prevailing

open market value.

35. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 17 June 2005.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2005

34.

35.

REREREALRS @

(i) BEAESTIRAEERARAESERAESL
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